

5/11/60

Memorandum No. 44 (1960)

Subject: Study No. 36 - Taking Possession

Attached to this memorandum as Exhibit I is the statute on taking possession that has been considered by the Commission. The strikeouts and underlining in proposed Section 1244.5 indicate changes that have not been considered by the Commission.

The Commission instructed the staff to make a recommendation on the problem of how to tie the statutes in with the proposed constitutional amendment. The statutes have been redrafted with this in mind. The statute in Exhibit I requires no constitutional amendment. It has been modified to eliminate any inconsistency with the present constitutional provision. Exhibit II is a statute to become effective only if the constitutional amendment is successful. It amends only Section 1244.5 as proposed in Exhibit I. Exhibit III is the proposed constitutional amendment.

At the April meeting, the Commission recommended that language be placed in the statute requiring that the order of immediate possession be recorded. This requirement was placed in Section 1244.5. However, it may not be necessary. Section 1243 provides: "A lis pendens shall be filed at the time of the commencement of the action in every county in which any of the property to be affected shall be located." This requirement seems to grant as much protection to persons who may rely on

the record as is needed. The order of immediate possession may be stayed or vacated, and if it is to be recorded, all the subsequent orders modifying it should be recorded too. The simple lis pendens requirement gives record notice of all of these orders without the necessity of recording each one.

The Commission has considered the statute in Exhibit I through Section 1253. The policy considerations underlying some of the remaining amendments have not been considered by the Commission. The reasons for the amendments are these:

Section 1254. The proposed amendment overrules existing case law and provides that a condemner does not waive his right of appeal by depositing the amount of a judgment in court pursuant to this section in order to obtain possession of the property.

1254.5. This is a technical change to eliminate a reference to the immediate possession provisions of the Constitution.

1254.7. The principal change involved here is that a condemnee is permitted to withdraw all of the money deposited by the condemner in order to obtain immediate possession instead of 75 per cent. Another change is made: the provision that title passes on withdrawal of the deposit is eliminated. An interest provision is also eliminated because a later section covers the interest problem.

1255a. The most important amendment adds language which prevents a condemner from voluntarily abandoning a condemnation if possession has been taken. In such a situation, the condemner may abandon only with the consent of the condemnee. The Commission approved this as a policy matter at the March meeting.

1255b. This section has been amended to set forth a complete system for the commencement and abatement of interest. This was also considered as a policy matter at the March meeting. It was there agreed that in immediate possession cases interest should begin to run on the date that the condemner has the right to the possession of the property. Interest should abate in such cases at the time the condemnee is able to withdraw the deposit. In other cases, interest should commence on the date of entry of judgment. If possession is taken pending an appeal and the judgment is reversed, interest should begin to run from the effective date of the order of possession.

Respectfully submitted,

Joseph B. Harvey
Assistant Executive Secretary

EXHIBIT I

An act to amend Sections 1249, 1253, 1254, 1254.5, 1254.7, 1255a and 1255b of the Code of Civil Procedure, to repeal Section 1243.5 of the Code of Civil Procedure, and to add Sections 1244.5, 1249.1 and 1252.1 to the Code of Civil Procedure, all relating to eminent domain.

The people of the State of California do enact as follows:

SECTION 1. Section 1243.5 of the Code of Civil Procedure is hereby repealed.

SEC. 2. Section 1244.5 is added to the Code of Civil Procedure, to read:

1244.5. In any case in which the plaintiff is entitled to take immediate possession of the property sought to be condemned pursuant to Section 14 of Article I of the Constitution:

(1) The plaintiff may, at the time of filing the complaint or at any time thereafter prior to the entry of judgment, apply ex parte to the court for an order authorizing him to take immediate possession of and to use the property or interest therein sought to be condemned.

(2) If the court determines that the plaintiff has the right to obtain the property by eminent domain and that ~~[it-is-necessary-for]~~ the plaintiff has the right to obtain immediate possession of the property sought to be condemned, the court shall, by order, authorize the plaintiff to take

possession of and to use the property or interest therein sought to be condemned after the plaintiff deposits in court the amount the court determines to be the probable just compensation the owner of the property will be entitled to receive for the taking of the property. The order must describe the property, the purposes of the condemnation and the amount that the plaintiff is required to deposit in court pursuant to the order, and must state that the plaintiff is not authorized to take possession of the property until 20 days after a copy of the order is filed in the office of the recorder of the county in which the property is located and served upon the record owner or owners of the property.

(3) The plaintiff shall, at least 20 days prior to the time possession is taken, file in the office of the recorder of the county in which the property is located and personally serve on the person or persons in possession of the property, if any, and upon the record owner or owners of the property or any interest therein, a copy of the order of the court authorizing such possession. If a person upon whom service of the order is required under this section resides out of the State, or has departed from the State, or cannot after due diligence be found within the State, the order shall be sent by registered or certified mail to the last known address of such person. A single service upon or mailing to those at the same address is sufficient. The latest secured assessment roll in the county where the property is located may be used to ascertain the addresses of the owners of the property.

(4) At any time after the court has made an order authorizing the plaintiff to take possession of the property sought to be condemned prior to the entry of judgment, the court may, upon motion of ~~[the owner of the~~

~~property or any interest therein~~ any party to the eminent domain proceedings,
~~[increase]~~ alter the amount that the plaintiff is required to deposit in
court pursuant to the court's order authorizing the plaintiff to take
immediate possession if the court determines that the probable just compensa-
tion the owner of the property will be entitled to receive for the taking
is not correctly set forth in the order authorizing the plaintiff to take
immediate possession.

(5) At any time after the court has made an order authorizing the
plaintiff to take immediate possession of the property sought to be condemned
prior to entry of judgment and before the plaintiff has taken possession
pursuant to such order, the court, upon motion of the owner of the property
or an interest therein or of an occupant of the property, may:

(a) Stay the effective date of the order for good cause shown.

(b) Vacate the order if the court determines that ~~[there is no~~
~~necessity for the taking of possession by the plaintiff prior to judgment~~
~~or that]~~ the plaintiff does not have the right to acquire the property by
eminent domain or that the plaintiff does not have the right to obtain
immediate possession of the property.

(6) If a motion to vacate the order authorizing the plaintiff to take
immediate possession of the property is made on the ground that the
plaintiff does not have the right to take the property by eminent domain,
the motion shall be supported by the affidavit or deposition of a person
having knowledge of the facts. The facts stated in an affidavit or deposition
in support of or in opposition to the motion shall be within the personal
knowledge of the affiant or deponent and shall be set forth with particularity.
Each affidavit or deposition shall show affirmatively that the affiant or

deponent, if sworn as a witness, can testify competently to the facts stated ~~[in-the-affidavit]~~ therein. If the court determines that plaintiff does not have the right to acquire the property by eminent domain or that there is a triable issue of fact as to the plaintiff's right to acquire the property by eminent domain, the court shall vacate the order authorizing the plaintiff to take possession of the property.

SEC. 3. Section 1249 of the Code of Civil Procedure is amended to read:

1249. Subject to Section 1249.1, for the purpose of assessing compensation and damages the right ~~[thereof]~~ thereto shall be deemed to have accrued at the date of the issuance of summons and its actual value at that date shall be the measure of compensation for all property to be actually taken, and the basis of damages to property not actually taken but injuriously affected, in all cases where such damages are allowed as provided in Section 1248; provided, that in any case in which the issue is not tried within one year after the date of the commencement of the action, unless the delay is caused by the defendant, the compensation and damages shall be deemed to have accrued at the date of the trial. ~~[Nothing-in-this section-contained-shall-be-construed-or-held-to-affect-pending-litigation. If-an-order-be-made-letting-the-plaintiff-into-possession,-as-provided-in Section-1254,-the-compensation-and-damages-awarded-shall-draw-lawful interest-from-the-date-of-such-order.--No-improvements-put-upon-the-property subsequent-to-the-date-of-the-service-of-summons-shall-be-included-in-the assessment-of-compensation-or-damages.]~~

SEC. 4. Section 1249.1 is added to the Code of Civil Procedure, to read:

1249.1. No improvements put upon the property subsequent to the date of the service of summons, and no improvements that have been removed or destroyed either prior to the trial or prior to the date the title to the property or the possession thereof is taken by the plaintiff, whichever is earlier, shall be included in the assessment of compensation or damages. All improvements that are on the property on the date of the service of summons may be considered in the assessment of compensation and damages unless they are removed or destroyed either before the title to the property or the possession thereof is taken by the plaintiff or before the trial, whichever is earlier.

SEC. 5. Section 1252.1 is added to the Code of Civil Procedure, to read:

1252.1. (1) If the defendant has paid any ad valorem taxes, or any ad valorem special assessments levied and collected as taxes, upon the property sought to be condemned for the fiscal year in which the title to the property vests in the plaintiff, the plaintiff shall pay to the defendant a sum equal to the amount of such taxes and assessments [~~,-together-with any-alloable-penalties-and-costs-thereon,~~] that are allocable to that part of the fiscal year that begins on the date that the title to the property vests in the plaintiff.

(2) If the title to the property vests in the plaintiff prior to judgment, the amount claimed by the defendant under this section shall be

claimed at the time and in the manner provided for claiming costs. If ~~[the plaintiff does not acquire the right to possession of]~~ title to the property does not vest in the plaintiff prior to judgment, the amount claimed by the defendant under this section shall be claimed within 30 days after the title vests in the plaintiff and shall be claimed in the manner provided for claiming costs.

SEC. 6. Section 1253 of the Code of Civil Procedure is amended to read:

1253. (1) When payments have been made and the bond given, if the plaintiff elects to give one, as required by ~~[the last two]~~ Sections 1251 and 1252, the court must make a final order of condemnation, which must describe the property condemned and the purposes of such condemnation. A copy of the order must be filed in the office of the recorder of the county ~~[, and thereupon]~~ .

(2) The title to the property described [therein] in the final order of condemnation [shall] vests in the plaintiff for the purposes therein specified [---] upon the date that the final order of condemnation is filed in the office of the recorder of the county or upon the effective date of an order authorizing the plaintiff to take possession of the property under Section 1244.5 or Section 1254, whichever is earlier.

(3) The effective date of an order authorizing the plaintiff to take possession of the property under Section 1244.5 or Section 1254 is that date upon which the plaintiff is authorized by the terms of the order to enter into possession, whether possession is actually taken on that date or subsequently.

SEC. 7. Section 1254 of the Code of Civil Procedure is amended to read:

1254. At any time after trial and judgment entered or pending an appeal from the judgment to the Supreme Court, whenever the plaintiff shall have paid into court, for the defendant, the full amount of the judgment, and such further sum as may be required by the court as a fund to pay any further damages and costs that may be recovered in said proceeding, as well as all damages that may be sustained by the defendant, if, for any cause, the property shall not be finally taken for public use, the superior court in which the proceeding was tried may, upon notice of not less than 10 days, authorize the plaintiff, if already in possession, to continue therein, and if not, then to take possession of and use the property during the pendency of and until the final conclusion of the litigation, and may, if necessary, stay all actions and proceedings against the plaintiff on account thereof. In an action for condemnation of property for the use of a school district, an order so authorizing possession

or continuation of possession by such school district is not appealable. The plaintiff shall not be held to have abandoned or waived the right to appeal from the judgment by depositing the amount of the judgment and such further sum as may be required by the court and taking possession of the property pursuant to this section. The defendant, who is entitled to the money paid into court for him upon any judgment, shall be entitled to demand and receive the same at any time thereafter upon obtaining an order therefor from the court. It shall be the duty of the court, or a judge thereof, upon application being made by such defendant, to order and direct that the money so paid into court for him be delivered to him upon his filing a satisfaction of the judgment, or upon his filing a receipt therefor, and an abandonment of all defenses to the action or proceeding, except as to the amount of damages that he may be entitled to in the event that a new trial shall be granted. A payment to a defendant, as aforesaid, shall be held to be an abandonment by such defendant of all defenses interposed by him, excepting his claim for greater compensation. In ascertaining the amount to be paid into court, the court shall take care that the same be sufficient and adequate. The payment of the money into court, as hereinbefore provided for, shall not discharge the plaintiff from liability to keep the said fund full and without diminution; but such money shall be and remain, as to all accidents, defalcations, or other contingencies (as between the parties to the proceedings), at the risk of the plaintiff, and shall so remain until the amount of the compensation or damages is finally settled by judicial determination, and until the court awards the money, or such part thereof as shall be determined upon, to the defendant, and until he is authorized or required by rule of court to take it. If, for any reason, the money shall at any time be lost, or otherwise

abstracted or withdrawn, through no fault of the defendant, the court shall require the plaintiff to make and keep the sum good at all times until the litigation is finally brought to an end, and until paid over or made payable to the defendant by order of court, as above provided. The court shall order the money to be deposited in the State Treasury, unless the plaintiff requests the court to order deposit in the county treasury, in which case the court shall order deposit in the county treasury. If the court orders deposit in the State Treasury, it shall be the duty of the State Treasurer to receive all such moneys, duly receipt for, and to safely keep the same in the Condemnation Deposits Fund, which fund is hereby created in the State Treasury and for such duty he shall be liable to the plaintiff upon his official bond. Money in the Condemnation Deposits Fund may be invested and reinvested in any securities described in Sections 16430, 16431 and 16432, Government Code, or deposited in banks as provided in Chapter 4 of Part 2 of Division 4 of Title 2, Government Code. The Pooled Money Investment Board shall designate at least once a month the amount of money available in the fund for investment in securities or deposit in bank accounts, and the type of investment or deposit and shall so arrange the investment or deposit program that funds will be available for the immediate payment of any court order or decree. Immediately after such designation the Treasurer shall invest or make deposits in bank accounts in accordance with the designations.

For the purposes of this section, a written determination signed by a majority of the members of the Pooled Money Investment Board shall be deemed to be the determination of the board. Members may authorize deputies to act for them for the purpose of making determinations under this section.

Interest earned and other increment derived from investments or deposits

made pursuant to this section, after deposit of money in the State Treasury, shall be deposited in the Condemnation Deposits Fund. After first deducting therefrom expenses incurred by the Treasurer in taking and making delivery of bonds or other securities under this section, the State Controller shall apportion as of June 30th and December 31st of each year the remainder of such interest earned or increment derived and deposited in the fund during the six calendar months ending with such dates. There shall be apportioned and paid to each plaintiff having a deposit in the fund during the six-month period for which an apportionment is made, an amount directly proportionate to the total deposits in the fund and the length of time such deposits remained therein. The State Treasurer shall pay out the money deposited by a plaintiff in such manner and at such times as the court or a judge thereof may, by order or decree, direct. In all cases where a new trial has been granted upon the application of the defendant, and he has failed upon such trial to obtain greater compensation than was allowed him upon the first trial, the costs of such new trial shall be taxed against him.

SEC. 8. Section 1254.5 of the Code of Civil Procedure is amended to read:

1254.5. When money is paid into court as provided by Section [~~14-of Article-1-of-the-Constitution~~] 1244.5, the court shall order the money to be deposited in the State Treasury, unless the plaintiff requests the court to order deposit in the county treasury, in which case the court shall order deposit in the county treasury. If money is deposited in the State Treasury pursuant to this section it shall be held, invested, deposited, and disbursed in the manner specified in Section 1254, and interest earned or other increment derived from its investment shall be apportioned and disbursed in the manner

specified in that section.

SEC. 9. Section 1254.7 of the Code of Civil Procedure is amended to read:

1254.7. At any time after money has been deposited as ~~[security-as]~~
provided in Section ~~[14-of-Article-1-of-the-Constitution]~~ 1244.5 ~~[for-the~~
~~condemnation-of-any-property-or-interest-in-property-for-state-highway-purposes]~~
, upon application, in the manner hereinafter provided, of the party whose
property or interest in property is being taken, the court may order from the
money deposited in connection with such property or interest an amount not
exceeding the amount which the court finds such party is entitled to receive
~~[75-percent-of-the-amount-originally-deposited]~~ for ~~[the]~~ his respective
property or interest to be paid to such party. Such application shall be made
by affidavit wherein the applicant shall set forth his interest in the property
and request withdrawal of a stated amount. The applicant shall serve a copy of
the application on the plaintiff and no withdrawal shall be made until at
least ~~[twenty-() 20 ()]~~ 20 days after such service of the application, or until
the time for all objections has expired, whichever is later. Within ~~[said~~
~~twenty-(20)-days]~~ the 20-day period, the plaintiff may object to such
withdrawal by filing an objection thereof in court on the grounds that other
persons are known or believed to have interests in the property. In this
event the plaintiff shall attempt to personally serve on such other persons a
notice to such persons that they may appear within ~~[ten-() 10 (-)-]~~ days
after such service and object to such withdrawal, and that failure to appear
will result in the waiver of any right to such amount withdrawn or further
rights against the plaintiff to the extent of the sum withdrawn. The plaintiff
shall state in its objection the names and last known addresses of other

persons known or believed to have an interest in the property, whether or not it has been able to serve them with such notice and the date of such service. If the plaintiff in its objection reports to the court that it is unable to personally serve persons known or believed to have interests in the property within ~~[said-twenty-({~~ the 20 ~~[-)-]~~ day period, said money shall not be withdrawn until the applicant causes such personal service to be made. If such persons so served appear and object to the withdrawal, or if the plaintiff so requests, the court shall thereupon hold a hearing after notice thereof to all parties and shall determine the amounts to be withdrawn, if any, and by whom [7-to-a-total-amount-not-exceeding-75-percent-of-the-amount-deposited.] No persons so served shall have any claim against the plaintiff for compensation for the value of the property taken or severance damages thereto, or otherwise, to the extent of the amount withdrawn by all parties; provided, the plaintiff shall remain liable for said compensation to persons having an interest of record who are not so served. If withdrawn, the receipt of any such money shall constitute a waiver by operation of law to all defenses in favor of the person receiving such payment except with respect to the ascertainment of the value of the property or interest in the manner provided by law ~~{,- and-title-to-the-property-or-interest-as-to-which-money-is-received-pursuant to-this-section-shall-vest-in-the-State-as-of-the-time-of-such-payment]~~. Any amount so paid to any party shall be credited upon any judgment providing for payment ~~[and-shall-be-considered-payment-upon-the-judgment-as-of-the-date-the withdrawal-is-made-so-that-no-interest-shall-be-payable-upon-the-amount-so withdrawn-after-the-date-of-its-withdrawal]~~. Any amount withdrawn by any party in excess of the amount to which he is entitled as finally determined in the condemnation proceeding shall be returned to the party who deposited it,

and the court in which the condemnation proceeding is pending shall enter judgment therefor against the defendant.

SEC. 10. Section 1255a of the Code of Civil Procedure is amended to read:

1255a. (1) Unless the title to the property sought to be condemned has vested in the plaintiff, the plaintiff may abandon the proceedings at any time after the filing of the complaint and before the expiration of thirty days after final judgment, by serving on defendants and filing in court a written notice of such abandonment; and failure to comply with Section 1251 of this code shall constitute an implied abandonment of the proceedings.

(2) If the title to the property sought to be condemned has vested in the plaintiff, the plaintiff may not abandon the proceedings except with the consent of the defendants.

(3) Upon such abandonment, express or implied, on motion of any party, a judgment shall be entered dismissing the proceeding and awarding the defendants their costs and disbursements, which shall include all necessary expenses incurred in preparing for trial and reasonable attorney fees. These costs and disbursements, including expenses and attorney fees, may be claimed in and by a cost bill, to be prepared, served, filed and taxed as in civil actions; provided, however, that upon judgment of dismissal on motion of plaintiff, defendants, and each of them, may file a cost bill within [thirty-{} 30 {}] days after notice of entry of such judgment; that said costs and disbursements shall not include expenses incurred in preparing for trial where the said action is dismissed forty days prior to the time set for the trial of the said action.

SEC. 11. Section 1255b of the Code of Civil Procedure is amended to read:

1255b. ~~[If-the-plaintiff-in-a-condemnation-proceeding-obtains-an-order from-the-court-for-possession-of-the-property-sought-to-be-condemned-prior to-the-trial-of-the-action,-then]~~ (1)[T]he compensation and damages awarded in a condemnation proceeding shall draw lawful interest from the [effective date-of-said-order-] earliest of the following dates:

(a) The date of the entry of judgment.

(b) The date that the title to the property sought to be condemned vests in the plaintiff.

(c) The date that the possession of the property sought to be condemned is taken or the damage thereto occurs.

(2) The compensation and damages awarded in a condemnation proceeding shall cease to draw lawful interest on the earliest of the following dates:

(a) Upon any amounts deposited in court for the owner, the date that such amounts are available for withdrawal by the person entitled thereto.

(b) The date of payment of the award to the person entitled thereto.

EXHIBIT II

An act to amend Section 1244.5 of the Code of Civil Procedure as proposed by Senate Bill No. , relating to eminent domain.

The people of the State of California do enact as follows:

SECTION 1. Section 1244.5 of the Code of Civil Procedure, as proposed by Senate Bill No. , is amended to read:

1244.5. [~~In any case in which the plaintiff is entitled to take immediate possession of the property sought to be condemned pursuant to Section 14 of Article I of the Constitution:~~]

(1) The plaintiff may, at the time of filing the complaint or at any time thereafter prior to the entry of judgment, apply ex parte to the court for an order authorizing him to take immediate possession of and to use the property or interest therein sought to be condemned.

(2) If the court determines that the plaintiff has the right to obtain the property by eminent domain and that it is necessary for the plaintiff [~~has the right~~] to obtain immediate possession of the property sought to be condemned, the court shall, by order, authorize the plaintiff to take possession of and to use the property or interest therein sought to be condemned after the plaintiff deposits in court the amount the

court determines to be the probable just compensation the owner of the property will be entitled to receive for the taking of the property. The order must describe the property, the purposes of the condemnation and the amount that the plaintiff is required to deposit in court pursuant to the order, and must state that the plaintiff is not authorized to take possession of the property until 20 days after a copy of the order is filed in the office of the recorder of the county in which the property is located and served upon the record owner or owners of the property.

(3) The plaintiff shall, at least 20 days prior to the time possession is taken, file in the office of the recorder of the county in which the property is located and personally serve on the person or persons in possession of the property, if any, and upon the record owner or owners of the property or any interest therein, a copy of the order of the court authorizing such possession. If a person upon whom service of the order is required under this section resides out of the State, or has departed from the State, or cannot after due diligence be found within the State, the order shall be sent by registered or certified mail to the last known address of such person. A single service upon or mailing to those at the same address is sufficient. The latest secured assessment roll in the county where the property is located may be used to ascertain the addresses of the owners of the property.

(4) At any time after the court has made an order authorizing the plaintiff to take possession of the property sought to

be condemned prior to the entry of judgment, the court may, upon motion of any party to the eminent domain proceedings, alter the amount that the plaintiff is required to deposit in court pursuant to the court's order authorizing the plaintiff to take immediate possession if the court determines that the probable just compensation the owner of the property will be entitled to receive for the taking is not correctly set forth in the order authorizing the plaintiff to take immediate possession.

(5) At any time after the court has made an order authorizing the plaintiff to take immediate possession of the property sought to be condemned prior to entry of judgment and before the plaintiff has taken possession pursuant to such order, the court, upon motion of the owner of the property or an interest therein or of an occupant of the property, may:

(a) Stay the effective date of the order for good cause shown.

(b) Vacate the order if the court determines that there is no necessity for the taking of possession by the plaintiff prior to judgment or that the plaintiff does not have the right to acquire the property by eminent domain [~~or that the plaintiff does not have the right to obtain immediate possession of the property~~].

(6) If a motion to vacate the order authorizing the plaintiff to take immediate possession of the property is made on the ground that the plaintiff does not have the right to

take the property by eminent domain, the motion shall be supported by the affidavit or deposition of a person having knowledge of the facts. The facts stated in an affidavit or deposition in support of or in opposition to the motion shall be within the personal knowledge of the affiant or deponent and shall be set forth with particularity. Each affidavit or deposition shall show affirmatively that the affiant or deponent, if sworn as a witness, can testify competently to the facts stated therein. If the court determines that the plaintiff does not have the right to acquire the property by eminent domain or that there is a triable issue of fact as to the plaintiff's right to acquire the property by eminent domain, the court shall vacate the order authorizing the plaintiff to take possession of the property.

SEC. 2. This act shall become effective only if Senate Bill No. is enacted by the Legislature at its 1961 Regular Session and Senate Constitutional Amendment No. is approved by the vote of the people at the next general election, and in such case, this act shall become effective on January 1, 1963.

EXHIBIT III

A resolution to propose to the people of the State of California
an amendment to the Constitution of the State by amending
Section 14 of Article I thereof relating to eminent domain.

Resolved by the Senate, the Assembly concurring, That the
Legislature of the State of California at its 1961 Regular
Session commencing on the 2nd day of January, 1961, two-thirds
of the members elected to each of the two houses of the Legis-
lature voting therefor, hereby proposes to the people of the
State of California that the Constitution of the State be
amended by amending Section 14 of Article I thereof, to read:

SEC. 14. Private property shall not be taken or damaged
for public use without just compensation having first been made
to, or paid into court for, the owner. [~~;-and-no-right-of-way-or
lands-to-be-used-for-reservoir-purposes-shall-be-appropriated-to
the-use-of-any-corporation,-except-a-municipal-corporation-or-a
county-or-the-State-or-metropolitan-water-district,-municipal
utility-district,-municipal-water-district,-drainage,-irrigation,
levee,-reclamation-or-water-conservation-district,-or-similar
public-corporation-until~~] When private property is taken or
damaged for public use, full compensation therefor shall be
[first-made-in-money-or-ascertained-and] made to, or paid into
court for, the owner, irrespective of any benefits from any

improvement proposed by [such] the person, firm, company or corporation in whose favor the power of eminent domain is exercised, which compensation shall be ascertained, except as provided in Section 23a of Article XII of this Constitution, by a jury, unless a jury be waived, as in other civil cases in a court of record, as shall be prescribed by law. [~~;-provided, that-in-any-proceeding-in-eminent-domain-brought-by-the-State, or-a-county,-or-a-municipal-corporation,-or-metropolitan-water district,-municipal-utility-district,-municipal-water-district, drainage,-irrigation,-levee,-reclamation-or-water-conservation-district,-or-similar-public-corporation,-the-aforesaid-State-or municipality-or-county-or-public-corporation-or-district-aforesaid-may-take-immediate-possession-and-use-of-any-right-of-way or-lands-to-be-used-for-reservoir-purposes,-required-for-a public-use-whether-the-fee-thereof-or-an-easement-therefor-be sought-upon-first-commencing-eminent-domain-proceedings-according-to-law-in-a-court-of-competent-jurisdiction-and-thereupon giving-such-security-in-the-way-of-money-deposited-as-the court-in-which-such-proceedings-are-pending-may-direct,-and-in such-amounts-as-the-court-may-determine-to-be-reasonably-adequate-to-secure-to-the-owner-of-the-property-sought-to-be taken-immediate-payment-of-just-compensation-for-such-taking and-any-damage-incident-thereto,-including-damages-sustained by-reason-of-an-adjudication-that-there-is-no-necessity-for taking-the-property,-as-seen-as-the-same-can-be-ascertained according-to-law.--The-court-may,-upon-motion-of-any-party-to~~]

~~said-eminant-domain-proceedings,-after-such-notice-to-the
ether-parties-as-the-court-may-prescribe,-alter-the-amount
of-such-security-as-required-in-such-proceedings.]~~ The
taking of private property for a railroad run by steam or
electric power for logging or lumbering purposes shall be
deemed a taking for a public use, and any person, firm, company
or corporation taking private property under the law of eminent
domain for such purposes shall thereupon and thereby become a
common carrier.